
         

 

NEWFIELD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MARTIN COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 26, 2026 

9:30 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.newfieldcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 
AGENDA 

NEWFIELD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

1050 SW Prairie Avenue 
Palm City, Florida 34990 

Conference Call (800) 743-4099 Access #9363638 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

February 26, 2025 
9:30 A.M. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………...................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. October 29, 2025 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Ratification Items 

1. Consider Ratification of Tax Attorney Engagement Letter……………………………………Page 6 

2. Consider Ratification of Martin County Trespass Warning Agreement……………………….Page 9 

3. Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and Sprockets Adventures, Inc. 
for Maintenance Services……………………………………………………………………….Page 10 

4. Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and Tideline Mobility LLC D/B/A 
SLIDR for Bicycle Sharing Services…………………………………………………………...Page 20 

5. Consider Ratification of Addendum to SAAS Service Agreement…………………………….Page 31 

6. Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and H2O Perfection, Inc. for 
Maintenance Services…………………………………………………………………………...Page 59 

7. Consider Ratification of Agreement for Window Repairs……………………………………...Page 70 

8. Consider Ratification of Agreement for Trail Maintenance and Invasive Control Services…...Page 75 

9. Consider Ratification of Agreement for Pest Control Services………………………………...Page 89 

H. Old Business 

I. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2026-01 – Setting Public Hearing on the Amenity Rules…………...Page 95 

J. Administrative Matters 

K. Board Member Comments 

L. Closed Security Session 

1. Consider Approval of Proposal for Security Services – Tact Tech Enforcement……………...Page 113 

M. Adjourn 



Page 1



Page 1 of 4 
 

NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
OCTOBER 29, 2025 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The October 29, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Newfield Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:30 a.m. at 1050 SW Prairie Avenue, Palm City, Florida 34990. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in The Stuart News on October 17, 2025, as legally required.  
 
C. CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO BOARD VACANCY 
 
Mr. Read nominated Tony Piscopo to the Newfield CDD Board of Supervisors. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Ms. Walsh appointing Tony Piscopo to the Newfield 
CDD Board of Supervisors-Seat 1. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
D. ESTABLISH QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established with the following Supervisors in attendance: Jonas Read, Celine Walsh and 
Jose Becerra. 
 
Also in attendance were: District Manager Stephanie Brown of Special District Services, Inc.; District 
Manager Andrew Karmeris of Special District Services, Inc (via phone); and District Counsel Bennett 
Davenport of Kutak Rock LLP (via phone). 
 
E.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.  
 
F.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public.  
 
G.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
  1.  May 28, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The May 28, 2025, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for Board consideration. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra approving the minutes of the May 28, 2025, 
Regular Board Meeting, as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

Page 2



Page 2 of 4 
 

H.  OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2025-06 Ratifying Sale of 2025 Bonds 
 
Resolution No. 2025-06 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-06 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE NEWFIELD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT RATIFYING, CONFIRMING, 
AND APPROVING THE SALE OF THE NEWFIELD COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, 
SERIES 2025 (2025 ASSESSMENT AREA); RATIFYING, CONFIRMING, AND 
APPROVING THE ACTIONS OF THE CHAIRMAN, VICE CHAIRMAN, 
TREASURER, SECRETARY, ASSISTANT SECRETARIES, AND ALL 
DISTRICT STAFF REGARDING THE SALE AND CLOSING OF THE 
NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025 (2025 ASSESSMENT AREA); 
DETERMINING SUCH ACTIONS AS BEING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
AUTHORIZATION GRANTED BY THE BOARD; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Ms. Walsh adopting Resolution 2025-06 Ratifying the 
Sale of 2025 Bonds, as presented. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
  2.  Consider Ratification of FY 2025/2026 Budget Funding Agreement 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra ratifying the FY 2025/2026 Budget 
Funding Agreement. The motion passed unanimously.  
 
  3.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-07 Adopting a Service Animal Policy 
 
Resolution No. 2025-07 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF NEWFIELD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING POLICIES FOR THE 
USE OF SERVICE ANIMALS IN PUBLIC ACCOMMODATIONS; PROVIDING 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Ms. Walsh adopting Resolution 2025-07 Adopting a 
Service Animal Policy, as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
  4.  Consider Ratification of Fireworks Display Agreement 

Page 3



Page 3 of 4 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra ratifying the Fireworks Display Agreement, 
as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

5. Consider Approval of Work Authorization for Construction Review for Phase 84th 
Avenue 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra approving the work authorization for the 
Construction Review for Phase 84th Avenue. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

6.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-08 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Amended Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2025-08 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AUTHORIZING 
AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 
BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra adopting Resolution 2025-08 Adopting 
Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Amended Budget, as present. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

7.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-09 Goals and Objectives Annual Report 
 
Resolution No. 2025-09 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE NEWFIELD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING AN ANNUAL 
REPORT OF GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES 
AND STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Ms. Walsh adopting Resolution 2025-09 Goals 
and Objectives Annual Report, as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

8.  Consider Approval of E-Bike SAAS Development Agreement  
 

Mr. Bennett went over the E-Bike agreement and advised that the OTORide company was not registered 
to do business in the State of Florida.  He indicated that it raised concerns regarding the ability to enforce 
the agreement. 
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra authorizing District 
Counsel to negotiate a contract with OTORide and to include language that OTORide must complete the 

Page 4



Page 4 of 4 
 

process in order to conduct business within the State of Florida and bring the agreement back to the 
Board for consideration. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
J.  ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 
Ms. Brown reminded the Board to complete their annual 4-hours of ethics training no later than 
December 31, 2025. 
 

 Notice of Receipt of the Annual Audit 
 
Mr. Bennett presented the 2024 annual audit and advised that there were no findings. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Mr. Becerra accepting the FY 2023/2024 Annual Audit 
Report, as presented. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

 Regular Board Meeting Schedule 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Read, seconded by Ms. Walsh authorizing the District to hold Regular Board 
Meetings on the last Thursday of each month at 9:30 a.m. at the Newfield Welcome Center located at 
1050 SW Prairie Avenue, Palm City, Florida 34990. The motion passed unanimously. 
 
K.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further Board Member comments. 
 
L.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Read adjourned the meeting at 9:47 a.m. 
There were no objections.  
 
 
 
 ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ________________________________   _________________________________ 
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AND SPROCKETS ADVENTURES, INC. FOR MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
 This agreement is made and entered into this 16th day of December 2025 

 by and between: 
 

NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated in 
Martin County, Florida with a mailing address 2501A Burns Road, Palm Beach 
Gardens, Florida 33410  
 
SPROCKETS ADVENTURES, INC., a Florida corporation, with a mailing address of 
10190 SW Village Parkway, Suite 107, Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 

 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant 
to the Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida 
Statutes  
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Act, the District owns, operates, and improvements 
within the boundaries of the District, including certain roadway improvements; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District desires to set up a program to provide the public with access to 

- as a means of  and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor 
to provide maintenance services for the E- , described in more detail in 
Exhibit A to this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor provides such Services and desires to contract with the District to 
do so in accordance with the terms and specifications in this Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct 
and by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2.  DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. The duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of the Contractor are to provide certain maintenance and repair service as set forth 

Page 10



2 

herein and in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the means, manner, and methods by which its duties, obligations and 
responsibilities are met and shall provide the Services within presently accepted industry best 
practices and professional standards. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign 
such staff as may be required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and 
controlling all aspects to assure completion of the Services. Contractor shall report directly to the 
District Manager or his or her designee. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of 
the District, its residents, and landowners from damage. Contractor agrees to repair any damage 

-four (24) hours. 
 
 SECTION 3.  COMPENSATION AND TERM. As compensation for Services, the District 
agrees to pay the Contractor for the work rendered pursuant to the rates described in Exhibit A. 
This compensation includes all labor and materials necessary to complete the Services. Contractor 
shall invoice the District monthly for services provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, 
and the District shall provide payment within forty-five (45) days of receipt of such invoices, or 

. The term of this of this Agreement shall be 

the Agreement shall automatically renew for up to two (2) additional one-year terms unless 
terminated earlier by either party in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.   
         
 SECTION 4. INSURANCE. The Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of its services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following:  
  
 Workers Compensation    statutory 
 
 General Liability       
   Bodily Injury (including contractual)  $1,000,000/$2,000,000 
   Property Damage (including contractual)  $1,000,000/$2,000,000 
 
 Automobile Liability (if applicable)    
   Bodily Injury and Property Damage   $1,000,000 
  

Contractor shall provide District with a certificate naming the District as an additional 
insured. At no time shall Contractor be without insurance in the above amounts. No policy may be 
canceled during the term of this Agreement without at least thirty (30) days written notice to the 
District. An insurance certificate evidencing compliance with this section shall be sent to the 
District prior to the commencement of any performance under this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 

damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, 
arbitration and/or mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorney fees, and paralegal fees 
(incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings) as ordered. 
 

Page 11



3 

B. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 
agents, professional staff, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives 
from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, 
expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or damage, 
whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in connection 
with the Services to be performed by Contractor, its employees and agents in 
connection with this Agreement, and that are caused by willful misconduct of 
Contractor, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 
proceedings with respect thereto. For avoidance of doubt, indemnification obligation 
of the Contractor herein requires the Contractor to indemnify the District for any and 
all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor in any claims arising hereunder 
(whether such claim is against the District, the Contractor or the District and Contractor 
as jointly liable parties) regardless of whether the District is adjudged to be more or 
less than 50% at fault. Contractor further agrees that nothing herein shall constitute or 
be construed as a waiver of the District's limitations on liability contained in section 
768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute. 

 
 SECTION 6. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. The Contractor shall 
keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
codes, regulations, or ordinances. If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five 
(5) days of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or 
an alleged violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or 
subdivision thereof with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action 
of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to 
terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements 
applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within 
five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a 
violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to 
be effective upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 7. LIENS AND CLAIMS. The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all 
labor employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement. 

performance under this Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim 
or lien. In the event that the Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) 
business days after the filing of notice thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies 
available under this Agreement, may terminate this Agreement to be effective immediately upon 
the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or 
specific performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 

 

Page 12



4 

 
 SECTION 9. CUSTOM AND USAGE. It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 10. SUCCESSORS. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 11. TERMINATION. The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement for cause by providing sixty (60) days written notice of termination to the District; 
provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure 
under this Agreement. The Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement 
immediately for cause by providing written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District 
shall provide thirty (30) days written notice of termination without cause. Upon any termination 
of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all Services rendered up until 
the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off sets the District may 
have against the Contractor as the sole means of recovery for termination.  
 
 SECTION 12. PERMITS AND LICENSES. All permits and licenses required by any 
governmental agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District. All 
other permits or licenses necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be 
obtained and paid for by the Contractor.  
 
 SECTION 13. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other. Any purported assignment without such 
approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor. Neither the Contractor nor 
employees of the Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or 
application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise. The Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or 
more of such laws with respect to employees of the Contractor, if there are any, in the performance 
of this Agreement. The Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, 
express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor shall have no authority to represent 
the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 15. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 

Page 13



5 

construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. A default by either Party under this 
Agreement shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity. In the event 
that either the District or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings 
or otherwise, then the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs 
incurred, including reasonable attorney
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 17. AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
 
 SECTION 18. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
Parties. 
 
 SECTION 19. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents, and other communications under 

Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
  If to Contractor:  Sprockets Adventures, Inc.  
      10190 SW Village Parkway, Suite 107 
      Port St. Lucie, Florida 34987 
      Attn: __________________ 
  
  If to the District:  Newfield Community Development District 
      2501A Burns Road 
      Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 
      Attn: District Manager 
 
  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. 

Page 14



6 

Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 21. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 22. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws 
of the State of Florida. All actions and disputes shall be brought in the proper court and venue, 
which shall be Martin County, Florida. 
 

SECTION 23. PUBLIC RECORDS. Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of 
any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including, but not limited to, section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor further 
recognizes that all work product, e-mails, or other forms of transmission whatsoever in furtherance 
of District business are considered public records and shall be retained as such by Contractor. All 
data and programs utilized in conduct of District business and operations and stored on computers 
are considered public records and are required to be turned over consistent with this provision. 
Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Stephanie 
Brown . Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by 
law, Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the 
service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested 
public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a 
cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public 
records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
the contract term if Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the 
District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public 

requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are 
transferred by Contractor, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word 
or Adobe PDF formats.  
 

Page 15



7 

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, 
CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (772) 345-5119    
SBROWN@SDSINC.ORG, 2501A BURNS ROAD, PALM BEACH 
GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410. 

 
 SECTION 24. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 25. ARM S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel. In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 26. COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment 
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document 
to physically form one document. 
 

SECTION 27. E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS. The Contractor shall comply with and perform 
all applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 
2021, to the extent required by Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United 

-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if 
there is a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida 
Statutes. 

 
If the Contractor anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for the Work, 

Contractor will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an affidavit from 
the subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that 
the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. 
Contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the agreement and provide a 
copy to the District upon request.  

 
In the event that the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly 

violated Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Contractor has otherwise complied with its 
obligations hereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to 
immediately terminate the agreement with the subcontractor upon notice from the District. Further, 
absent such notification from the District, the Contractor or any subcontractor who has a good faith 
belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1), 
Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. 

Page 16



8 

 
 By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has 
terminated a contract with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the 
year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 28. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES. The Contractor 
agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general 
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate 
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes. 
 
 SECTION 29. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES STATEMENT. Contractor certifies it: (i) is not in 
violation of Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, (ii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List; (iii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List; (iv) does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria; (v) is not 
on the on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List; and (vi) is not participating in a 
boycott of Israel. If the Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement with regards to the 
prior sentence, has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List, has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, and/or 
has engaged in a boycott of Israel, the District may immediately terminate this Agreement. 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Page 17



9 

. 
  
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the 
day and year first written above. 
 
Attest:      NEWFIELD COMMUNITY    
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
  
 
WITNESS: SPROCKETS ADVENTURES, INC. 

_____________________________  By:  _____________________________________ 
Witness     Print: ____________________________________ 
      Its:   _____________________________________  
       
_____________________________ 
Print Name of Witness 

Exhibit A:  Scope of Services 

Page 18



 

Exhibit A 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   
 
 
 

Page 19



1 
 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AND TIDELINE MOBILITY LLC D/B/A SLIDR  

FOR BICYCLE SHARING SERVICES  
 
 THIS AGREEMENT Agreement entered into this 8th  day of December 2025, 
by and between: 
 

NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated 
in Martin County, Florida, and having a mailing address of 2501A Burns Road, 
Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 District  
 
TIDELINE MOBILITY LLC D/B/A SLIDR, a Florida limited liability company, with 
a mailing address of 222 W Yamato Rd, Suite 106-209, Boca Raton, Florida 33431 

Contractor Parties  
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as 
amended, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining 
certain public infrastructure improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has a need to retain an independent contractor to provide the 
materials, labor, items, and tools necessary to 
sharing program, as more particularly described and identified in Exhibit A Services ; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is qualified, willing and able to serve as a 
contractor for and has agreed to perform the Services for the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
          

SECTION 1. RECITALS.   The recitals so stated above are true and correct and by this 
reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2. SCOPE OF SERVICES.     

 
A. Contractor agrees to perform the Services in a professional and commercially 
reasonable manner consistent with generally accepted industry standards for bicycle share 
system management. The Services shall be limited to operational oversight, coordination, 
and program administration. Mechanical repairs and maintenance shall be performed by 

Page 20



2 
 

limited to coordinating such repairs. 
 
B. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which 
its duties, obligations and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. While 
providing the Services, Contractor shall assign such staff as may be required, and such staff 
shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to assure 
completion of the Services.  
 
C. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to 
this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby 
agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  Contractor shall use all 
due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and landowners from damage.  

activities and work within twenty-four (24) hours, and Contractor agrees to complete such 
repairs within a reasonable amount of time. 

 
SECTION 3. TERM; COMPENSATION.  Term of this of this Agreement shall be three (3) 

years from the Effective Date (the Initial Term ). Upon completion of the Initial Term, the 
Agreement shall automatically renew for up to two (2) additional one-year terms unless terminated 
earlier by either party in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. For each of the annual 
renewals, there will be a 5% increase in the rate of compensation owed to the Contractor under 
this Agreement  The District shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the monthly rates and 
fees detailed in Exhibit A, attached hereto. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to 
usual accounting practices. As soon as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the 
Contractor shall invoice the District for all services performed in the prior month and any other 
sums due to the Contractor. The District shall pay the invoice amount within forty-five (45) days 
after the invoice date. Each monthly invoice will include such supporting information as the 
District may reasonably require the Contractor to provide. 
 
 SECTION 4. INSURANCE. 
 

A. Contractor, and any of its subcontractors, shall, at its own expense, maintain 
insurance during the performance of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of 
liability not less than the following:  

      statutory 
 
  General Liability       
    Bodily Injury (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
    Property Damage (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
 
  Automobile Liability (if applicable)    
     Bodily Injury and Property Damage   $1,000,000 
 

B. The District, its agents, staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as an 
additional insured. Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance 
evidencing compliance with this requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the 

Page 21



3 
 

District unless it provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the 
insurance coverages, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior 
written notice to the District. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance 
carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a 

-VII. 

C. If Contractor, or its subcontractors, as applicable, fails to have secured and 
maintained the required insurance, the District has the right (without any obligation to do 
so, however), to secure such required insurance in which event Contractor shall pay the 
cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may 

 

D. The District shall maintain insurance on all District-owned bicycles, equipment, 
charging stations, and related infrastructure, and shall list Contractor as an additional 
insured where applicable.  

 SECTION 5. INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its 

supervisors, officers, agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or 
representatives from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, 
interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against the District, or loss or 
damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out  of the actions or omissions of the 
Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents related to their obligations under 
this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 
proceedings with respect thereto.  
 

 B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, 
judgments, damages, liquidated damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, back pay awards, 

paralegal fees (incurred in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), 
any interest, all as actually incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the  
liability under this section does not include any consequential, incidental, punitive or 
special damages. 

 
 SECTION 6. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement 

as set forth in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would 
otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation of law.  

 
SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION. Contractor shall 

keep, observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, 
regulations, or ordinances.  If Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) days 
of the receipt of any notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged 
violation, made by any local, State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof 
with respect to the services being rendered under this Agreement or any action of Contractor or 

Page 22



4 
 

any of its agents, servants, employees, or materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, 
conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any other requirements applicable to provision of 
services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such agency within five (5) days after receipt 
of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a violation or an alleged violation, 
the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective upon the giving of 
notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 8. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions 
and agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and 
further, that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this 
Agreement shall not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to 
the specific conditions and agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or 
waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 9.  SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding 
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, 
except as expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 10. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that Contractor may terminate this 

stating a failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, 
however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this 
Agreement. Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement with cause by 

 stating a failure of 
Contractor to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that the 
Contractor shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this Agreement. 
Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing forty-

shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination 
of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against Contractor.   
 
 SECTION 11.   ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor Contractor may assign this 
Agreement without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without 
such approval shall be void. 
 
 SECTION 12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this 
Agreement, Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither Contractor nor 
employees of Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or 
application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise.  Contractor agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more 
of such laws with respect to employees of Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this 
Agreement.  Contractor shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or 
implied, on behalf of the District and Contractor shall have no authority to represent the District 
as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 

Page 23



5 
 

 
 SECTION 13. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or 
construction of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION 14. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  In the event that either the District or 
Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including 

 fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute 
resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 
 SECTION 15. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete 
expression of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 16. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both Parties. 

 
SECTION 17.  AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly 

authorized by the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the 
requirements of law, and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
 SECTION 18. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under 

Notice Notices
First Class Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Newfield Community Development District 
      2501A Burns Road 
      Tampa Florida, Florida 33614 
      Attn:  District Manager 
 
  With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn:  District Counsel 
 

B. If to Contractor:  Tideline Mobility LLC d/b/a Slidr 
     222 W Yamato Rd, Suite 209,  
     Boca Raton, Florida 33431 

      Attn: ____________________ 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and 

Page 24



6 
 

legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  
Counsel for the District and counsel for Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District 
and Contractor.  Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the Parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by 
providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties and addressees set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 19. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 

the Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the 
benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation 
other than the Parties hereto any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or 
any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall 
be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 

 
 SECTION 20. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida.  Each Party consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or related 
to this Agreement shall be in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for Martin County, Florida. 

 
 SECTION 21. PUBLIC RECORDS.  Contractor understands and agrees that all documents 
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including but not limited to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Stephanie Brown 

Public Records Custodian applicable by law, 
Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 
2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public 
records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public 
records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, 
are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following 
the contract term if Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the 
District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all  public 

requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records are 
transferred by Contractor, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or 
confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word 
or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 

RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE 

Page 25



7 
 

CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (772) 345-5119    
SBROWN@SDSINC.ORG, 2501A BURNS ROAD, PALM 
BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410.  

 
 SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 

SECTION 23. ARM S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction. The Parties participated fully in the preparation 
of this Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute 
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to 
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted 
or construed against any party. 

 
SECTION 24. COUNTERPARTS.  This instrument may be executed in any number of 

counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such 
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment 
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document 
to physically form one document. 

 
SECTION 25. E-VERIFY REQUIREMENTS.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform 

all applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 
2021, to the extent required by Florida Statute, Contractor shall register with and use the United 

-Verify system to verify the work authorization status 
of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause if 
there is a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated Section 448.091, Florida 
Statutes. 
 

If the Contractor anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for the Work, 
Contractor will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an affidavit from 
the subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that 
the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. 
Contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the agreement and provide a 
copy to the District upon request.  
 

In the event that the District has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly 
violated Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Contractor has otherwise complied with its 
obligations hereunder, the District shall promptly notify the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to 
immediately terminate the agreement with the subcontractor upon notice from the District. Further, 
absent such notification from the District, the Contractor or any subcontractor who has a good faith 
belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1), 
Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. 
 

Page 26



8 
 

By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public employer has 
terminated a contract with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the 
year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 26. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES.   The Contractor 

agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general 
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate 
in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes . 

 
SECTION 27.  SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES STATEMENT.   Contractor certifies it: (i) is not 

in violation of Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, (ii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in Sudan List; (iii) is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List; (iv) does not have business operations in Cuba or Syria; (v) is not 
on the on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List; and (vi) is not participating in a 
boycott of Israel.  If the Contractor is found to have submitted a false statement with regards to the 
prior sentence, has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Scrutinized 
Companies that Boycott Israel List, has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria, and/or 
has engaged in a boycott of Israel, the District may immediately terminate this Agreement. 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
 

  

Page 27



9

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and 
year first written above.

ATTEST: NEWFIELD COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

WITNESS: TIDELINE MOBILITY LLC D/B/A 
SLIDR, a Florida limited liability company

Print Name: By: 
Its: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 

Page 28



10 
 

Exhibit A 
Scope of Services  

Monthly Management Fee (Flat Rate by Fleet Size) 

Our pricing is a fixed monthly rate based on the total number of bikes under management: 

 Tier 1: 0 25 bikes  $3,500/month 
 Tier 2: 26 50 bikes  $5,000/month 
 Tier 3: 51 100 bikes  $7,500/month 
 Tier 4: 100+ bikes  $10,000/month 

 

Slidr provides full operational oversight and end-to-end management of the e-bike share 
system. This includes: 

Operational Oversight 

 Ensuring all bikes remain operational, charged, and available for riders. 
 Daily monitoring of bike status, battery health, and ride data. 
 Coordinating with Sprockets for any onsite maintenance, repairs, or parts replacement. 

Maintenance & Inventory Coordination 

 Managing all maintenance workflows and communication with the maintenance partner 
(Sprockets). 

 Coordinating the purchase of new bikes, replacement parts, and components directly 
with the supplier in China. 

 Tracking inventory of spare parts, chargers, and replacement components. 

Charging Station Coordination 

 Coordinating installation, setup, and ongoing oversight of charging stations. 
 Ensuring stations remain active, online, and able to charge/lock bikes. 

Customer Support & Rider Experience 

 Full customer service for riders through the app (support tickets, issues, billing 
questions, etc.). 

 Handling escalations, refund requests (when applicable), and general rider 
communication. 

Software & App Management 

Page 29



11 
 

 Acting as liaison between the client and the software provider. 
  
 Reporting any bugs, glitches, or needed enhancements directly to the software 

company and managing resolution. 
 Monitoring analytics, ridership trends, and system performance. 

Program Management & Reporting 

 Monthly reporting on ridership, utilization, performance, and operational status. 
 Ongoing evaluation of fleet performance to recommend adjustments, expansions, or 

improvements. 
 Administrative oversight, documentation, policy updates, and ongoing system 

management. 

 
 

Page 30



1 
 

ADDENDUM TO SAAS SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
 

Customer: Newfield Community Development 
 

Company:  

Mailing 
Address: 

2501A Burns Rd 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

Mailing 
Address: 

Banani 11, Ventura Iconia, Level 3, 
Holding 37, Road 11, Block H, 
Banani, Dhaka - 1213 

Phone: (772) 345-5119  Phone: +20 120 3699559 

 
 
The following provisions govern the SAAS Service Agreement, dated August 31, 2025, submitted by the Company, 
and attached hereto as Exhibit A 

 for ride share services software: 
 
1. Term; Termination. The term of this Agreement shall span three (3) years beginning on the date this Addendum 

unless terminated earlier by either party in accordance with the terms 
of this Section 1. After the expiration of the Initial Term, the Customer shall have the option to exercise up to two 
(2) annual renewals. The Customer and Company agree that each party may terminate for cause immediately by 
providing written notice of termination to the other party and stating a failure of the other party to perform 
according to the terms of this Agreement. The Customer and the Company further agree that both the Customer 
and the Company may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing forty-five (45
of termination. Upon any termination of this Agreement, the Company shall be entitled to payment for all work 
and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject to whatever claims or off-
sets the Customer may have against the Company. 

 
2. Insurance.  
 

A. The Company shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following insurance: 
  
  a.  
 

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Company
limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and property 
damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

  
i. Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property damage in connection with any 

 
  

c. 
disease. 

 
d. Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing coverage for any 
accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the Company of any owned, 
non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other equipment required to be licensed. 

 
B. The Customer, its staff, consultants, officers, and supervisors shall be named as additional insured. The 
Company shall furnish the Customer with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this 
requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the Customer unless it provides that any change or termination 
within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of 
prior written notice to the Customer. Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to 
conduct business in the State of Florida. 

 

Page 31



2 
 

C. If the Company fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the Customer has the right but 
not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the Company shall pay the cost for that 
required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the 
Customer  

 
2. Independent Contractor. In all matters relating to the Agreement, the Company shall be acting as an independent 

contractor. Neither the Company nor employees of the Company, if any, are employees of the Customer under 
the meaning or application of any Federal or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or 
otherwise. The Company agrees to assume all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more of such laws 
with respect to employees of the Company, if there are any, in the performance of the Agreement. The Company 
shall not have any authority to assume or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the Customer and 
the Company shall have no authority to represent the Customer as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity. 

 
3. Limitations On Governmental Liability. Company agrees that nothing in the Agreement shall be deemed as a 

waiver of the Customer Customer
Florida Statutes or other law, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the 
purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under such limitations of liability or by operation 
of law.  
 

4. Public Records. Company understands and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the Customer in 
connection with the Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Company agrees to comply with all 
applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, 
Florida Statutes. Company acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the Customer is 
Stephanie Brown . Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, 
the Company shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the Customer to perform the service; 2) upon 
request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the Customer with the requested public records or allow the 
records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided 
in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the 
contract term and following the contract term if the Company does not transfer the records to the Public Records 
Custodian of the Customer; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the Customer, at no cost, all public 
records in Company  requirements for 
retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred by the Company, the 
Company shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Customer in a format 
that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.  
 
IF THE COMPANY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 
119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE COMPANY
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS 
AT (772) 345-5119; SBROWN@SDSINC.ORG; OR 2501A BURNS RD, PALM BEACH 
GARDENS, FL 33410.  
 

5. Assignment. Neither the Customer nor the Company may assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other.  Any purported assignment without such consent shall be null and void. 

 
6. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written instrument duly executed by 

both of the parties to the Agreement. 
 
7. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, including facsimile and PDF 

electronic copies, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original, and such counterparts 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages, if any, may be 
detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to physically form one document. 

 
8. Binding Effect; Governing Law, Venue and Jurisdiction. Before the full execution of this Agreement, the 

Page 32



3 
 

Company shall register to do business in the State of Florida with the Secretary of State for the State of Florida 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 607.1501, Florida Statutes. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without reference to the principles of conflict of 
laws. The Company understands and agrees that (i) the Customer is located in Florida; (ii) the Customer makes 
all decisions from s office in Florida; (iii) the Agreement is made in Florida (that is, no binding 
contract will be formed until the Customer receives and accepts  signed Agreement in Florida); 
and (iv) the Company will be used by persons in Florida. Any suit, action or proceeding arising 
hereunder, or the interpretation, performance or breach of this Agreement, shall, if the Customer so elects, be 

The Company agrees that the Acceptable 
Forums are convenient to it and submit to the jurisdiction of the Acceptable Forums and waives any and all 
objections to jurisdiction or venue. Should such proceeding be initiated in any other forum, the Company waives 
any right to oppose any motion or application made by Buyer to transfer such proceeding to an Acceptable 
Forum. The Company and the Customer further agree that the mailing by certified or registered mail, return 
receipt requested, of any process required by any such court will constitute valid and lawful service of process 
against them, without the necessity for service by any other means provided by statute or rule of court, but 
without invalidating service performed in accordance with such other provisions. 

 
9. Compliance with E-Verify. The Company shall comply with and perform all applicable provisions of Section 

448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, beginning January 1, 2021, to the extent required by Florida Statute, 
Company -Verify system to 
verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The Customer may terminate this Agreement 
immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the Company has knowingly violated Section 448.091, 
Florida Statutes. 

 
If the Company anticipates entering into agreements with a subcontractor for the Work, Company will not enter 
into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an affidavit from the subcontractor regarding 
compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract 
with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. Company shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration 
of the agreement and provide a copy to the Customer upon request.  
 
In the event that the Customer has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly violated Section 
448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Company has otherwise complied with its obligations hereunder, the Customer 
shall promptly notify the Company. The Company agrees to immediately terminate the agreement with the 
subcontractor upon notice from the Customer. Further, absent such notification from the Customer, the Company 
or any subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly 
violated s. 448.09(1), Florida Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. By 
entering into this Agreement, the Company represents that no public employer has terminated a contract with 
the Company under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year immediately preceding the date of 
this Agreement. 

 
10. Compliance with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes. The Company agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), 

Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review or hearing 
pursuant such section and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), 
Florida Statutes. 
 

11. Compliance with Chapter 287 Requirements. Company acknowledges that, in addition to all laws and 
r
to this Agreement: 
 

a. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation of the right to transact 
business with public entities; 

b. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of the right to transact 
business with public entities; 

c. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with scrutinized companies; 
d. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or revocation of the right to transact 

business with public entities; denial of economic benefits; and 

Page 33



4 
 

e. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign countries of concern 
prohibited. 

 
Company acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that meet certain criteria from bidding 
on or entering into or renewing a contract with governmental entities, including with the Customer 

 
 
Company acknowledges that the Customer may terminate this Agreement if the Company is found to have met 
the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public Integrity Laws. 
 
Company certifies that in entering into this Agreement, neither it nor any of its officers, directors, executives, 
partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the entity, nor any 
affiliate of the entity, meets any of the Prohibited Criteria, and in the event such status changes, Company shall 
immediately notify the Customer. By entering into this Agreement, Company agrees that any renewal or 
extension of this Contract shall be deemed a recertification of such status. 

 
12. Anti-Human Trafficking Statement. The Company does not use coercion for labor or services as defined in 

Section 787.06, Florida Statutes, and the Company has complied, and agrees to comply, with the provisions of 
Section 787.06, Florida Statutes. 
 

13. Conflicts. To the extent any of the provisions of this Addendum are in conflict with the provisions of the 
Proposal, this Addendum controls. 

 
14. Effective Date. The Agreement shall be deemed effective as of the date of the full execution of this Addendum. 

 
 
MAGNUSHUB LTD. 
 
 
___________________________ 
By:________________________ 
Its:_________________________ 
Date:_______________________ 
 

NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT  
 
____________________________________ 
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
Date:________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
Exhibit A: Proposal  

Page 34



5 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
Proposal 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Privacy Policies attached
hereto as Exhibit A

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

Page 56



 

 

Page 57



 

 

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2026-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT TO DESIGNATE 
THE DATE, TIME AND LOCATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING AND 
AUTHORIZATION TO PUBLISH NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING REVISED AMENITY RULES. 
 
WHEREAS, the Newfield Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 

special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being 
situated entirely within Martin County, Florida; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) is authorized by Sections 
190.011(5) and 190.035, Florida Statutes, to adopt rules, orders, rates, fees and charges pursuant 
to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE NEWFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  The District’s Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing to adopt  

amenity rules and rates, a proposed copy of which are attached hereto as Exhibit A.  The Board 
will hold a public hearing on      , 2026, at 9:30 a.m. at 1050 
SW Prairie Avenue, Palm City, Florida 34990.  

 
SECTION 2.  At said public hearing, the Board will consider the amenity rules and rates 

of the District as more particularly set forth in attached Exhibit A. 
 

SECTION 3. The District Secretary is directed to publish notice of the hearing in 
accordance with Section 120.54, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 4.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2026. 

 
ATTEST: NEWFIELD COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
             
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
EXHIBIT A:  Proposed District Rules 
 

Page 95



2 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 

 

Page 96



1  

 
 
 
 

 

 
NEWFIELD 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

     
   
 

Rules, Policies and Fees 
for the 

Amenity Facilities 

 
Adopted: ________, 2026 

 
                      
 
 

Page 97



2  

DEFINITIONS 

 
"Amenity Facilities" or "Amenity"- shall mean the properties and areas owned by the District and 

intended for recreational use and shall include, but not specifically be limited to, the Newfield Barn, the 
farm amenity, the Harvest House, and the Kinpling Conservancy Trails, together with their appurtenant 
facilities and areas. 

 
"Amenity Facilities Policies" or "Policies" - shall mean these Amenity Facilities Rules, Policies, and 

Fees of the Newfield Community Development District, as amended from time to time. 

 

"Amenity Manager" - shall mean the District Manager or that person or firm so designated by the 
District's Board of Supervisors. 

 
"Annual User Fee"- shall mean the fee established by the District for any person that is not a 

Resident and wishes to become a Non-Resident User. The amount of the Annual User Fee is set forth 
herein, and that amount is subject to change based on Board action. 

 
"Board of Supervisors" or "Board" - shall mean the Newfield Community Development District's 

Board of Supervisors. 
 

"District" - shall mean the Newfield Community Development District. 

 

"District Manager" - shall mean the professional management company with which the District 
has contracted to provide management services to the District. 

 

“Facility Renter” – shall mean any person who applies and is approved to hold a private event at 
the Newfield Barn 

 
"Guest" - shall mean any person or persons who are invited by a Resident or Non-Resident User 

to participate in the use of the Amenity Facilities. 
 
"Non-Resident User" - shall mean any person or family not owning property in the District who is 

paying the Annual User Fee to the District for use of all Amenity Facilities. 
 
"Patron" or "Patrons" - shall mean Residents, Guests, and Non-Resident User who are eighteen 

(18) years of age and older. 

 
"Property Owner" - shall mean that person or persons having fee simple ownership of land within 

the Newfield Community Development District. 

 
"Renter" - shall mean any tenant residing in a Property Owner’s home pursuant to a valid rental 

or lease agreement. 
 
"Resident" - shall mean any person or persons having residence in a home within the Newfield 

Community Development District that is a Property Owner or a Renter with assigned user privileges 
pursuant to the policies set forth herein. 
 

Page 98



3  

 NEWFIELD ANNUAL USER FEE 
 

The Annual User Fee for any Non-Resident is $2,500.00 per year. This payment must be paid in 
full at the time of completion of the Non-Resident user application and the corresponding agreement. 
This fee will permit the use of all Amenity Facilities for one (1) full year from the date of receipt of 
payment by the District. Each subsequent renewal shall be paid in full on the anniversary date of 
application for use of the Amenity Facilities by the Non–Resident User. Such fee may be increased, not 
more than once per year, by action of the Board of Supervisors, to reflect increased costs of operation 
of the Amenity Facilities. The use of the Amenity Facilities are not available for commercial purposes. 

 
GUESTS 

 
(1)  Residents or Non-Resident Users who have a Guest are responsible for any and all actions taken 

by such Guest. Violation by a Guest of any of these Polices as set forth by the District could result 
in loss of that Patron's privileges and membership. 

 
(2)   Residents or Non-Resident Users may bring no more than five (5) persons per household as guests 

to the Amenities at one time unless the Patron has reserved the Newfield Barn in accordance 
with the “THE AMENITY CENTER RENTAL POLICIES” provided herein.  

 
RENTER'S PRIVILEGES 

 
(1)   Property Owners who rent out or lease out their residential unit(s) in the District shall have the 

right to designate the Renter of their residential unit(s) as the beneficial users of the Property 
Owners Amenity Facilities privileges. 

 
(2)    In order for the Renter to be entitled to use the Amenity Facilities, the Renter must complete the 

Non-Resident User application and sign the accompanying agreement. The Annual User Fee will 
then be waived for the Renter. A Renter who is designated as the beneficial user of the Resident's 
membership shall be entitled to the same rights, privileges, and responsibilities to use the 
Amenity Facilities as the Resident. 

 
(3)    During the period when a Renter is designated as the beneficial user of the Property Owner's 

privilege to use the Amenity Facilities, the Property Owner shall not be entitled to use the 
Amenity Facilities with respect to that property. 

 
(4)    Property Owners shall be responsible for all charges incurred by their Renters which remain 

unpaid after the customary billing and collection procedure established by the District. Property 
Owners are responsible for the deportment of their respective Renter. 

 
(5)    Renters shall be subject to such other rules and regulations as the Board may adopt from time 

to time. 

Page 99



4 
 

AMENITY FACILITY OPERATIONS 

Hours: The District Amenity Facilities are available for use by Patrons during normal operating hours to be 
established and posted by the District. 

 
Emergencies: After contacting 911 if required, all emergencies and injuries must be reported to the office 

of the District Manager (phone number (772) 345-5119). 
 
District Equipment: All equipment owned by the District and available for use by Patrons and Guests must 

remain in the Amenity Facilities. Should the equipment be removed damaged, missing pieces or 
in worse condition than when it was used by a Patron, that Patron will be responsible to the 
District for any cost associated with repair or replacement of the equipment. 

 
Please note that the Amenity Facilities are unattended facilities. Persons using the Amenity Facilities 
do so at their own risk. Additional staff members are not present to provide personal training, exercise 
consultation or athletic instruction, unless otherwise noted, to Patrons or Guests. Persons interested 
in using the Amenity Facilities are encouraged to consult with a physician prior to commencing a 
fitness program. 

 

GENERAL FACILITY PROVISIONS 

 
(1) All Patrons using the Amenity Facilities are expected to conduct themselves in a responsible, 
courteous and safe manner, in compliance with all policies and rules of the District governing the Amenity 
Facilities. Violation of the District's Policies and/or misuse or destruction of Amenity Facility equipment 
may result in the suspension or termination of the offending Patron’s Amenity Facility privileges. 

(2) Two (2) Facility Access Cards will be issued to each household within the District and fee-paying 
Non-Resident User; for avoidance of doubt, two (2) is the maximum number of Facility Access Cards 
allowed per household or per Non-Resident User at any one time.  If a replacement Facility Access Card 
must be purchased, requesting party shall be responsible for the actual cost to replace the same. If any 
payment is made using a credit card, an additional processing fee shall apply in addition to the 
replacement cost.  

(3) The Board reserves the right to amend, modify, or delete, in part or in their entirety, these Policies 
when necessary, at a duly-noticed Board meeting and may, as a courtesy or if required by applicable law, 
notify Residents and Non-Resident Users of anticipated changes or changes made. Residents and Non-
Resident Users are responsible for keeping up to date with the latest Policies.  However, in order to change 
or modify rates or fees beyond the increases specifically allowed for by the District's rules and regulations, 
the Board must hold a duly noticed public hearing on said rates and fees. The invalidity or unenforceability 
of any one or more provisions of these Policies shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the 
remaining portions of the Policies, or any part thereof.   

(4) Children under thirteen (13) years of age, unless noted otherwise, must be accompanied at all 
times by a parent or adult Patron over eighteen (18) years of age. 

(5) Dogs and all other pets (with the exception of service animals, as such term is defined by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act) shall not be permitted at the Amenity Facilities. 

(6) Vehicles must be parked in designated areas. Vehicles should not be parked on grass lawns, or in 

Page 100



5 
 

any way which blocks the normal flow of traffic.  

(7) Fireworks of any kind are not permitted anywhere at or on the Amenity Facilities or adjacent 
areas unless a waiver is granted by the District. 

(8) The Board of Supervisors (as an entity), its appointee, the District Manager, and the Amenity 
Manager shall have full authority to enforce these policies. 

(9) Smoking and vaping are not permitted at any of the Newfield Amenity Facilities or District lands 
as designated by law.  

(10) Patrons and their Guests shall treat all staff members with courtesy and respect. 

(11) Off-road bikes/vehicles are prohibited on all property owned, maintained and operated by the 
District or on any of the Amenity Facilities, except in the case of non-motorized bikes along the Kiplinger 
Conservancy Trails. 

(12) The District will not offer childcare services to Patrons at any of the Amenity Facilities. 

(13) Skateboarding and rollerblading are not allowed on the Amenity Facilities property at any time. 

(14) Events/Performances at any Amenity Facility, including those by outside entertainers, must be 
approved in advance by the District Manager. 

(15) Alcoholic beverages are not permitted at any District owned facility or property at any time, 
except in the case of a rental of the Newfield Barn in which the Patron discloses their intention to provide 
alcoholic beverages during the rental and provided that all conditions in the Rental Form, attached hereto, 
have been met. 

(16) Commercial advertisements shall not be posted or circulated in the Amenity Facilities. Except as 
may otherwise be permitted by law, petitions, posters or promotional material shall not be originated, 
solicited, circulated or posted on Amenity Facilities property unless approved in writing by the District 
Manager. 

(17) The Amenity Facilities shall not be used for commercial purposes. The term "commercial 
purposes" shall mean those activities which involve, in any way, the provision of goods or services for 
compensation. 

(18) Firearms or any other weapons are not permitted in any of the Amenity Facilities unless otherwise 
authorized pursuant to Florida law. 

(19) The Amenity Manager reserves the right to authorize all programs and activities, including the 
number of participants, equipment and supplies usage, facility reservations, etc., at all Amenity Facilities, 
except usage and rental fees that have been established by the Board. 

(20) Loitering (the offense of standing idly or prowling in a place, at a time or in a manner not usual 
for law-abiding individuals, under circumstances that warrant a justifiable and reasonable alarm or 
immediate concern for the safety of persons or property in the vicinity) is not permitted at any Amenity 
Facility. 

(21) All Patrons shall abide by and comply with any and all federal, state and local laws and ordinances 
while present at or utilizing the Amenity Facilities, and shall ensure that any minor for whom they are 

Page 101



6 
 

responsible also complies with the same. 

LOSS OR DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY OR INSTANCES OF PERSONAL INJURY 

 

(1)     Each Patron, as a condition of use of the Amenity Facilities, assumes sole responsibility for his or 
her property. The District and its contractors shall not be responsible for the loss or damage to 
any private property used or stored on or in any of the Amenity Facilities. 

 
(2)     No person shall remove from the room in which it is placed, or from any Amenity Facility, any 

property or furniture belonging to the District or its contractors without proper authorization 
from the District Manager or the Board. Residents and Non-Resident Users shall be liable for any 
property damage and/or personal injury at the Amenity Facilities, or at any activity or function 
operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District or its contractors, which is caused by 
a Resident or Non-Resident User or a Guest or family member(s) of the same. The District 
reserves the right to pursue any and all legal and equitable measures necessary to remedy any 
losses it suffers due to property damage or personal injury caused by a Resident or Non-Resident 
User or a Guest or family member(s) of the same. 
 

(3) Any Patron or other person who, in any manner, makes use of or accepts the use of any apparatus, 
appliance, facility, privilege or service whatsoever owned, leased or operated by the District or its 
contractors, or who engages in any contest, game, function, exercise, competition or other 
activity operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, either on or off the Amenity 
Facilities' premises, shall do so at his or her own risk, and shall hold the District, the Board of 
Supervisors, District employees, District representatives,  District contractors and District agents, 
harmless from any and all loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by him 
or her, resulting therefrom and/or from any act of omission of the District, or their respective 
operators, supervisors, employees, contractors or agents. Any Patron shall have, owe, and 
perform the same obligation to the District and their respective operators, supervisors, 
employees, representatives, contractors, and agents hereunder with respect to any loss, cost, 
claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by any Guest or Patron. 

 

(4) Should any party bound by these Policies bring suit against the District, the Board of Supervisors 
or staff, agents or employees of the District, or any Amenity Facility operator or its officers, 
employees, representatives, contractors or agents in connection with any event operated, 
organized, arranged or sponsored by the District or any other claim or matter in connection with 
any event operated, organized, arranged or sponsored by the District, and fail to obtain judgment 
therein against the District or the Amenity Facilities' operators, officers, employees, 
representatives, contractors or agents, said party bringing suit shall be liable to the prevailing 
party (i.e. the District, etc.) for all costs and expenses incurred by it in the defense of such suit, 
including court costs and attorney's fees through all appellate proceedings.  

Page 102



7 
 

FITNESS TRAINING ROOM POLICIES 

 
Eligible Users: Patrons sixteen (16) years of age and older are permitted to use the District fitness 
training room during designated operating hours. No children under the age of sixteen (16) are allowed 
in the District fitness training room at any time without specific consent from the District’s Board. 

 
Food and Beverage: Food (including chewing gum) is not permitted within the District fitness training 
room. Beverages, however, are permitted in the District fitness training room if contained in non-
breakable containers with screw top or sealed lids. Alcoholic beverages are not permitted. Smoking is 
not permitted in the fitness training room. 

 
(1) Appropriate attire and footwear (covering the entire foot) must be worn at all times in the 

District fitness training room. Appropriate attire includes t-shirts, tank tops, shorts, leotards, 
and/or sweat suits and other athletic wear (no swimsuits) 

(2) Each individual is responsible for wiping off fitness equipment after use. 

(3) Use of personal trainers is permitted in the District fitness training room only with the approval 
of the District Manager. 

(4) Hand chalk is not permitted to be used in the District fitness training room. 

(5) Radios, tape players, CD players, MP3 players, televisions, and/or speakers are not permitted 
unless they are personal units equipped with headphones. 

(6) No bags, gear, or jackets are permitted on the floor of the District fitness training room or on the 
fitness equipment 

(7) Weights or other fitness equipment may not be removed from the District fitness centers. 

(8) Please limit use of cardiovascular equipment to thirty (30) minutes and step aside between 
multiple sets on weight equipment if other persons are waiting. 

(9) Please be respectful of others. Allow other Patrons and Guests to also use equipment, especially 
the cardiovascular equipment. 

(10) Please replace weights to their proper location after use. 

(11) Free weights are not to be dropped and should be placed only on the floor or on equipment made 
specifically for storage of the weights. 

 

FISHING POLICY 

 
Patrons  may not fish  from any lake/retention  pond  within  the Newfield Community Development 
District.  No watercrafts of any kind are allowed in these bodies of water except for lake maintenance 
vehicles. Any violation of this policy will be reported to the local authorities. Swimming is also prohibited 
in any of the waters. The purpose of these bodies of water is to help facilitate the District's natural water 
system for runoff and overflow. Anyone who violates this provision does so at their own risk. 

 

Page 103



8 
 

 
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION USE OF FACILITIES 

 

(1) The Homeowners Association is permitted one (1) meeting per month at the Amenity Facilities 

without being required to pay an Annual User Fee and/or a room rental fee.  The District may limit 

or terminate the Homeowners Association’s use of the Amenity Facilities at any time. 

(2) The Homeowners Association that uses the Amenity Facilities shall be responsible for the cost of 

repairing any damage to the Amenity Facilities occurring during Homeowners’ Association events.  

(3) Additional Costs.  The District may in its sole discretion require additional staffing, insurance, 

cleaning, or other service for any given event, and, if so, may charge an additional fee for the 

event equal to the cost of such staffing, insurance, cleaning, or service 

 
 

[remainder of this page intentionally blank]  

Page 104



9 
 

NEWFIELD BARN RENTAL POLICIES 

 
Residents and Non-Resident Users may reserve the Newfield Barn through the Amenity Manager for 
various meetings, classes, events, etc. for a maximum of five (5) hours per event, between the hours of 
9:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. The five (5) hour limitation can only be exceeded upon specific authorization 
from the Board. Residents and Non-Resident Users may not reserve the Newfield Barn more than four 
(4) times in any twelve (12) month period. The maximum number of persons attending any event for the 
Newfield Barn shall not exceed seventy-five (75) people. If the number of persons attending an event 
exceeds seventy-five (75) people, Residents and Non-Resident Users must also pay for the salary of a 
District representative who will present during the event and will be available to provide assistance and 
coordination. Reservation of the Newfield Barn is on a first come, first serve basis and is subject to 
approval by the District Manager or Amenity Manager. Upon application for use of the Newfield Barn, 
the District or Amenity Manager will determine if a paid attendant will be necessary. If an attendant is 
necessary, the party requesting the Newfield Barn will be required to pay the costs associated with the 
attendant. The Newfield Barn will not be available for use on the following days: 

 
December 24th  December 25th 
December 31st  January 1st 
Easter Sunday  Memorial Day 
July 4th   Labor Day 
Thanksgiving Day 

 
The Newfield Barn is not available for rentals during above-stated days and weekend on which a federal 
holiday falls on either a Monday or Friday with the exception of Juneteenth, Martin Luther King Day, 
Washington’s Birthday, Columbus Day and Veterans Day. 

 

Only the Newfield Barn and the Southern and Northern Patios are able to be rented out for private 
events. None of the other Amenity Facilities are available for reservation and shall remain open to all 
Patrons and their guests during normal operating hours. 

 
A refundable deposit in the amount established by District rule is required and will be returned after the 
function is complete provided there is no evidence of damage to the facility. However, should any Patron 
or his or her guest(s) violates any of the policies set forth in this section or this Amenity Facilities Policies, 
the event will be immediately cancelled and the applicable security deposit shall be forfeited. See below 
for applicable rates. 
 
No open burning or campfires are allowed at the Amenity Facilities. 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Amenity Manager reserves the right to authorize all programs and 
activities, with regard to the number of Guest participants, equipment, supplies, usage, etc., conducted 
at the rental facilities for Homeowner’s Association regular meetings.   
 

Below are additional policies and guidelines set forth and agreed upon by the Board and District Manager 
governing rental and events in the Newfield Barn: 

 

 
(1) Applicant must be a Resident or Non-Resident User (“Facility Renter”) who will be responsible for 

Page 105



10 
 

ensuring that their Guests adhere to the policies set forth herein. 
(2) All Facility Renter will be required to fill out and sign the Newfield Barn Rental Polices, Application 

and Agreement per the District Manager's or Amenity Manager’s office, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. In addition to the provisions contained herein, those requirements 
articulated in the Newfield Barn Rental Polices, Application and Agreement shall be incorporated 
to the rules and rates contemplated herein. 

(3) The District is NOT licensed for the sale of alcoholic beverages. The Facility Renter requesting for 
rental that desires to provide alcoholic beverages for consumption during the rental event must 
abide by the following: 
a. Facility Renter must notify the Amenity Manager in advance and receive approval for the 

service of alcoholic beverages at rental events, which the Amenity Manager may approve in 
its sole discretion.  

b. Facility Renters must adhere to all federal and state laws regulating the service of alcoholic 
beverages, including but not limited to any required licenses or other approvals necessary for 
the service of alcoholic beverages. 

c. Facility Renters acknowledges and agrees it assumes the risk and holds the District, its 
supervisors, offices, agents, and staff harmless from any and all liability arising out of the use 
of alcohol at rental events.  

d. Facility Renter shall provide or cause to be provided Liquor Liability Insurance in an amount 
no less than $1,000,000 or Additional Event Liability Insurance coverage in the amount of One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) acceptable to the District.  This policy regarding additional event 
liability insurance coverage also pertains to certain events the District determines should 
require additional Event Liability coverage on a case by case basis (to be reviewed by the 
District Manager or the Board of Supervisors). The District, and its Supervisors, officers and 
staff, shall be named as an additional insured party on any such policies, and a certificate of 
insurance illustrating the appropriate coverage amount and parties is to be provided to the 
District Manager prior to the event. Facility Renter shall  furnish a certificate to the District 
showing compliance with applicable insurance requirements prior to any such rental event. 

e. Rental event attendees must be at least twenty-one (21) years of age to be served alcohol 
and must prevent valid picture identification at the request of District staff. 

f. The District reserves the right to ask intoxicated persons to leave the District’s property or to 
require the suspension of service of alcohol at rental events at any time, in its sole discretion. 

(4) Patrons are not allowed to bring or use their own grills or smokers at the Newfield Barn. 
(5) Appropriate attire must be worn at all times in the Newfield Barn, as applicable.  
(6) Each individual is responsible for cleaning up the rental area after use. 
(7) Loud music is not permitted and must comply with County’s noise ordinance, as applicable. 
(8) Please treat district staff and other Patrons with courtesy and respect. 
(9) If any Patron attending the event violates any of the policies set forth in this section or this Amenity 

Facilities Policies, the event shall be immediately cancelled and the applicable security deposit 
shall be forfeited. 

(10) In addition to policy set forth above, if, during the event, the law enforcement is called to the 
Amenity Facilities due to a Patron’s behavior that poses a threat to the health, safety and welfare 
of other Patrons of the District or to the District’s property, then the Amenity Manager or the 
District Manager may, in his or her discretion, suspend that Patron’s privileges to use the Amenity 
Facilities, for an appropriate duration in reasonable proportion to the severity of misconduct, or 
until the date of the next Board of Supervisors meeting, whichever occurs first. Such suspension 
may be appealed to the Board of Supervisors at their next regularly-held meeting, and the Board 
may consider, in their sole discretion, whether the suspension should be held as imposed, 

Page 106



11 
 

adjusted, or reversed to reinstate the Patron’s privileges, all in accordance with the “RULES 
RELATING TO SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES” provided herein. 

 

Schedule of Fees/Deposits 

 
(1) The non-refundable rental fee for the Newfield Barn is set as follows:  

(A) $250.00 refundable security deposit 
(B) $500 non-refundable reservation fee for Patrons; $1,500 reservation fee for non-Patrons.  
(C) If the Facility Renter chooses to pay the applicable reservation fee via a credit card, a 

processing fee of $6.00 shall be charged in addition to such reservation fee. 
(D) Renter may also be subject to and be invoiced the cost of a district representative equal to 

the cost of such staffing, cleaning, security or service, as may be necessitated by the 
proposed event to be held at the facility, as determined by the Amenity Manager 

(2) The Newfield Barn has a maximum rental time limit of five (5) hours between the hours of 9:00 
a.m. and 9:00 p.m. A final guarantee (number) of Guests is to be conveyed to the Amenity 
Manager no later than five (5) days before the date of the scheduled event. In absence of a final 
guarantee, the number indicated on the original rental application will be considered correct. A 
check shall be made out to the "Newfield Community Development District" and submitted to the 
Amenity Management staff at the Amenity Facilities during posted office hours in advance of the 
rental event.  

(3) To receive a full refund of the security deposit, the following must be completed: 

 

1. Ensure that all garbage is removed from the premises. 
2. Remove all displays, favors or remnants of the event.(No adhesives permitted on walls 

or windows) 
3.  Wipe off and restore the furniture and other items to their original position. 
4.  Wipe off counters, table tops and sink area. 
5. Ensure that no damage has occurred to the Newfield Room and its surrounding property 

and facilities if used by Patron and their guests. 
 
If additional cleaning is required, the Facility Renter reserving the room will be liable for any expenses 
incurred by the District to hire an outside cleaning contractor. In light of the foregoing, Facility Reenters 
may opt to pay for the actual cost of cleaning by a professional cleaning service hired by the District. The 
District Manager shall determine the amount of deposit to be returned, if any. As provided above, if any 
Patron attending the event violates any of the policies set forth in this section or this Amenity Facilities 
Policies, the event shall be immediately cancelled and the applicable security deposit shall be forfeited. 

 
Indemnification 

 
Each organization, group or individual reserving the use of an Amenity Facility (or any part thereof) agrees 
to indemnify and hold harmless the District, its supervisors, officers, staff, agents, contractors and 
employees  from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands  by any person, corporation or other 
entity, for injuries, death, property damage of any nature, arising out of, or in connection with, the use of 
the District lands, premises and/or Amenity Facilities, including litigation or any appellate proceeding with 
respect thereto. Nothing herein shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's sovereign 
immunity granted pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other applicable law. 

Page 107



12 
 

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION OF ACCESS RULES 
 

 
Law Implemented: ss. 120.69, 190.011, 190.012, Fla. Stat. (2025) 

 
 

In accordance with Chapters 190 and 120 of the Florida Statutes, and on ________, 2026, at a 
duly noticed public meeting, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Newfield Community 
Development District (“District”) adopted the following rules / policies to govern disciplinary and 
enforcement matters. All prior rules / policies of the District governing this subject matter are hereby 
rescinded and are replaced in its entirety with the following, for any violations occurring after the 
Effective Date stated above. 
 
 
 

1. Introduction. This rule addresses disciplinary and enforcement matters relating to the use 
of the properties and areas owned by the District and intended for recreational use and shall include, but 
not specifically be limited to, the Newfield Barn, the farm amenity, the Harvest House, and the Kinpling 
Conservancy Trails, together with their appurtenant facilities and areas. (“Amenities” or “Amenity”). 
 

2. General Rule. All persons using the Amenities and entering District properties are 
responsible for compliance with the rules and policies established for the safe operations of the District’s 
Amenities. 
 

3. Access Cards / Key Fobs.  Access cards and key fobs are the property of the District.  The 
District may request surrender of, or may deactivate, a person’s access card or key fob for violation of the 
District’s rules and policies established for the safe operations of the District’s Amenities.  
 

4. Suspension and Termination of Rights. The District shall have the right to restrict, 
suspend, or terminate the Amenity access of any person and members of their household to use all or a 
portion of the Amenities for any of the following acts (each, a “Violation”), depending on the severity of 
the Violation:  

 

a. Submitting false information on any application for use of the Amenities, 
including but not limited to facility rental applications; 

b. Failing to abide by the terms of rental applications; 

c. Permitting the unauthorized use of a key fob or access card or otherwise 
facilitating or allowing unauthorized use of the Amenities; 

d. Exhibiting inappropriate behavior or repeatedly wearing inappropriate attire; 

e. Failing to pay amounts owed to the District in a proper and timely manner (with 
the exception of special assessments); 

f. Failing to abide by any District rules or policies (e.g., Amenity Rules); 

g. Treating the District’s staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, 
Patrons or guests, in a harassing or abusive manner; 

h. Damaging, destroying, rendering inoperable or interfering with the operation of 
District property, or other property located on District property;  

i. Failing to reimburse the District for property damaged by such person, or a minor 

Page 108



13 
 

for whom the person has charge, or a guest;  

j. Engaging in conduct that is likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the 
District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons or guests;  

k. Committing or is alleged, in good faith, to have committed a crime on or off 
District property that leads the District to reasonably believe the health, safety or welfare of the 
District, its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons or guests is likely 
endangered; 

l. Engaging in another Violation after a verbal warning has been given by staff 
(which verbal warning is not required);  

m. Such person’s guest or a member of their household committing any of the above 
Violations; or 

n. Violating any state, federal, local laws, rules, ordinances, or regulations including 
but not limited to such violations likely to endanger the health, safety, or welfare of the District, 
its staff, contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons or guests. 

 
Termination of Amenity access shall only be considered and implemented by the Board in situations that 
pose a long term or continuing threat to the health, safety and/or welfare of the District, its staff, 
contractors, representatives, residents, landowners, Patrons or guests.  The Board, in its sole discretion 
and upon motion of any Board member, may vote to rescind a termination of Amenity access.   
 

5. Administrative Reimbursement.  The Board may in its discretion require payment of an 
administrative reimbursement of up to Five Hundred Dollars ($500) in order to offset the legal and/or 
administrative expenses incurred by the District as a result of a Violation (“Administrative 
Reimbursement”).  Such Administrative Reimbursement shall be in addition to any suspension or 
termination of Amenity access, any applicable legal action warranted by the circumstances, and/or any 
Property Damage Reimbursement (defined below).  
 

6. Property Damage Reimbursement.  If damage to District property occurred in connection 
with a Violation, the person or persons who caused the damage, or the person whose guest caused the 
damage, or the person who is responsible of a minor that caused the damage, shall reimburse the District 
for the costs of cleaning, repairing, and/or replacing the property (“Property Damage Reimbursement”).   
Such Property Damage Reimbursement shall be in addition to any suspension or termination of Amenity 
access, any applicable legal action warranted by the circumstances, and/or any Administrative 
Reimbursement. 
 

7. Removal from Amenities. The District Manager, General Manager, Amenity Manager and 
onsite staff each have the independent ability to remove any person from the Amenities if a Violation 
occurs, or if in his or her discretion, it is in the District’s best interest to do so.  
 

8. Initial Suspension from Amenities.  The District Manager, General Manager, Amenity 
Manager, or his or her designee may at any time restrict or suspend for cause or causes, including but not 
limited to a Violation, any person’s access to the Amenities until a date not later than the next regularly 
scheduled meeting date of the Board.  In the event of such a suspension, the District Manager or his or 
her designee shall mail a letter to the person suspended referencing the conduct at issue, the sections of 
the District’s rules and policies violated, the time, date, and location of the next regular Board meeting 
where the person’s suspension will be presented to the Board, and a statement that the person has a 
right to appear before the Board and offer testimony and evidence why the suspension should be lifted.  

Page 109



14 
 

If the person is a minor, the letter shall be sent to the adults at the address within the community where 
the minor resides.   

 

9. Hearing by the Board; Administrative Reimbursement; Property Damage 
Reimbursement.   

 

a. At the Board meeting referenced in the letter sent under Section 8 above, or as 
soon thereafter as a Board meeting is held if the meeting referenced in the letter is canceled, a 
hearing shall be held at which both District staff and the person subject to the suspension shall 
be given the opportunity to appear, present testimony and evidence, cross examine witnesses 
present, and make arguments.  The Board may also ask questions of District staff, the person 
subject to the suspension, and witnesses present.  All persons are entitled to be represented by a 
licensed Florida attorney at such hearing.   

b. After the presentations by District staff and the person subject to the suspension, 
the Board shall consider the facts and circumstances and determine whether to lift or extend the 
suspension or impose a termination.  In determining the length of any suspension, or a 
termination, the Board shall consider the nature of the conduct, the circumstances of the conduct, 
the number of rules or policies violated, the person’s escalation or de-escalation of the situation, 
and any prior Violations and/or suspensions   

c. The Board shall also determine whether an Administrative Reimbursement is 
warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Administrative Reimbursement. 

d. The Board shall also determine whether a Property Damage Reimbursement is 
warranted and, if so, set the amount of such Property Damage Reimbursement.  If the cost to 
clean, repair and/or replace the property is not yet available, the Property Damage 
Reimbursement shall be fixed at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting after the cost to 
clean, repair, and/or replace the property is known. 

e. After the conclusion of the hearing, the District Manager shall mail a letter to the 
person suspended identifying the Board’s determination at such hearing. 

 

10. Suspension by the Board.  The Board on its own initiative acting at a noticed public 
meeting may elect to consider a suspension of a person’s access for committing any of the Violations 
outlined in Section 4.  In such circumstance, a letter shall be sent to the person suspended which contains 
all the information required by Section 8, and the hearing shall be conducted in accordance with Section 
9. 
 

11. Automatic Extension of Suspension for Non-Payment.  Unless there is an affirmative vote 
of the Board otherwise, no suspension or termination will be lifted or expire until all Administrative 
Reimbursements and Property Damage Reimbursements have been paid to the District.  If an 
Administrative Reimbursement or Property Damage Reimbursement is not paid by its due date, the 
District reserves the right to request surrender of, or deactivate, all access cards or key fobs associated 
with an address within the District until such time as the outstanding amounts are paid.   
 

12. Appeal of Board Suspension.  After the hearing held by the Board required by Section 9, 
a person subject to a suspension or termination may appeal the suspension or termination, or the Board’s 
determination of amount of an Administrative Reimbursement and/or Property Damage Reimbursement, 
to the Board by filing a written request for an appeal (“Appeal Request”).  The filing of an Appeal Request 
shall not result in the stay of the suspension or termination.  The Appeal Request shall be filed within 

Page 110



15 
 

thirty (30) calendar days after mailing of the notice of the Board’s determination as required by Section 
9(e), above.  For purposes of this Rule, wherever applicable, Appeal Request filing will be perfected and 
deemed to have occurred upon receipt by the District. Failure to file an Appeal Request shall constitute a 
waiver of all rights to protest the District’s suspension or termination, and shall constitute a failure to 
exhaust administrative remedies.  The District shall consider the appeal at a Board meeting and shall 
provide reasonable notice to the person of the Board meeting where the appeal will be considered.  At 
the appeal stage, no new evidence shall be offered or considered.  Instead, the appeal is an opportunity 
for the person subject to the suspension or termination to argue, based on the evidence elicited at the 
hearing, why the suspension or termination should be reduced or vacated.  The Board may take any action 
deemed by it in its sole discretion to be appropriate under the circumstances, including affirming, 
overturning, or otherwise modifying the suspension or termination. The Board’s decision on appeal shall 
be final. 
 

13. Legal Action; Criminal Prosecution; Trespass.  If any person is found to have committed 
a Violation, such person may additionally be subject to arrest for trespassing or other applicable legal 
action, civil or criminal in nature.  If a person subject to a suspension or termination is found at an Amenity 
Facility, such Person will be subject to arrest for trespassing.  If a trespass warrant is issued to a person by 
a law enforcement agency, the District has no obligation to seek a withdrawal or termination of the 
trespass warrant even though the issuance of the trespass warrant may effectively prevent a person from 
using the District’s Amenities after expiration of a suspension imposed by the District. 
 

14. Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this rule shall be held to be 
invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this rule shall continue in full force and effect, it 
being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of this rule would have been adopted 
despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section. 

 

Page 111



 

The above Policies were amended, restated supplemented  and  adopted by the Board of Supervisors 
for the Newfield Community Development District on this _______ day of ______ 2026 (“Effective 
Date”).   

 

 

______________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary / Assistant Secretary    Chairperson / Vice Chairperson 

 
  

Exhibit A – Form of Facility Use Application Agreement 
 

Page 112



CONSIDER APPROVAL OF PROPOSAL FOR 
SECURITY SERVICES – TACT TECH 

ENFORCEMENT 
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED 
UNDER SEPARATE COVER 

Page 113


	Newfield Community Development Ditrict - February 26, 2026 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	October 29, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Ratification Items
	Consider Ratification of Tax Attorney Engagement Letter
	Consider Ratification of Martin County Trespass Warning Agreement
	Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and Sprockets Adventures, Inc.for Maintenance Services
	Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and Tideline Mobility LLC D/B/A SLIDR for Bicycle Sharing Services
	Consider Ratification of Addendum to SAAS Service Agreement
	Consider Ratification of Agreement between the District and H2O Perfection, Inc. for Maintenance Services
	Consider Ratification of Agreement for Window Repairs
	Consider Ratification of Agreement for Trail Maintenance and Invasive Control Services
	Consider Ratification of Agreement for Pest Control Services

	New Business
	Consider Resolution No. 2026-01 – Setting Public Hearing on the Rules of Procedure

	Closed Security Session
	Consider Approval of Proposal for Security Services – Tact Tech Enforcement





